

 

The Board of Education of
School District No.5 (Southeast Kootenay)

 
POST-MEETING AGENDA - REGULAR PUBLIC MEETING

 
October 8, 2013, 5:00 p.m.
Sparwood Secondary School

Pages

1. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING

1.1 Call to Order

1.2 Consideration and Approval of Agenda

M/S that the agenda for the regular public meeting of the Board of Education
of October 8, 2013 be approved as amended.

1.3 Approval of the Minutes 5

Meeting of September 10, 2013

M/S that the minutes of the regular public meeting of the Board of Education
of September 10, 2013 be approved as circulated.

1.4 Receipt of Records of Closed Meetings 11

Meeting of September 10, 2013

M/S to accept the closed records of the in-camera meeting of the Board of
Education of September 10, 2013.

1.5 Business Arising from Previous Minutes

1.6 Receiving of Delegations/Presentations

1.6.1 Cookie the Service Dog

1.6.2 DSAC - Blue Lake Presentation - Chiara MacPherson, Morgan
McLean, Bailey Hubbard, Cynthia Kielpinski

1



2. COMMITTEE REPORTS/TRUSTEE REPRESENTATIVE REPORTS

2.1 Advocacy/Education Committee 12

M/S that the Board approve the Student Online Registration Form.

M/S that the Board establish enrolment deadline dates for student enrolment in
Board Policy 3.1.

M/S that the Board accept the report of the Advocacy/Education Committee.

2.2 Policy Committee 18

M/S that the revised Policy 2.13 Alcohol - Buildings, Grounds,
Functions be approved by the Board of Education.

M/S that the revised Policy 1.4 Terms of Reference - Policy Committee, with the
noted amendment, be approved by the Board of Education.

M/S that the revised Policy 1.6 Terms of Reference - Advocacy/Education
Committee be approved by the Board of Education.

M/S that the revised Draft Policy Terms of Reference - Special
Education/Student Services Committee, with the noted amendments, be
approved by the Board of Education.

M/S that the Board accept the report of the Policy Committee.

2.3 Finance/Operations/Personnel Committee 26

M/S that the Board accept the report of the Finance/Operations/Personnel
Commiteee.

2.4 Special Education Student Services Committee 29

M/S that the Board accept the report of the Special Education Student Services
Committee.

2.5 Communications/Media Committee

M/S to accept the report of the Communications/Media Committee.

2.6 Mt. Baker Secondary School Building Replacement Committee

M/S to accept the report of the Mt. Baker Secondary School Building
Replacement Committee.

2.7 Legacy of Learning

M/S to accept the Legacy of Learning report.

2.8 Trustee Reports 33

2



3. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT TO THE BOARD 34

M/S that the October 8, 2013 Superintendent's Report to the Board of Education be
accepted as presented.

4. NEW BUSINESS

4.1 Business Arising from Delegations

4.2 Kootenay Boundary Branch Executive Representative

M/S to appoint Trustee Bev Bellina to represent School District No. 5 on the
Kootenay Boundary Branch Executive.

4.3 Application for Joint Sponsorship of a Sports Team 43

M/S that the Board approve the submission of the application for joint
sponsorship of a volleyball team by Laurie Middle School and Parkland Middle
School for a one year trial basis.

Discussion included:

• Community sports teams
• Development opportunities
• Student numbers
• Coaches - availability, qualifications, quality
• Elite athletes
• Loss of program once teams amalgamate
• Club sports v. school teams
• One year trial basis

M/S that the Board direct Superintendent Hauptman to investigate the situation
around lack of enrolment/coaches with regard to school sports and provide a
report to the Board.

4.4 Mt. Baker Secondary School Field Trip to Vienna

M/S that the Board of Education approve the Mt. Baker Secondary School field
trip to Vienna and Prague.

Discussion included:

• Lack of school follow-up / confirmation process for schools
• Safety/worse case scenario
• Process to approve travel requests
• Representative to be present in future to provide additional information

5. TRUSTEE BOUQUETS

3



6. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/CORRESPONDENCE

6.1 Remembrance Day Services

6.2 Workplace Bullying and Harassment

6.3 Burn Fund Calendars

7. QUESTION PERIOD

8. ADJOURNMENT

M/S that the October 8, 2013 regular public meeting of the Board of Education adjourn
at 7:10 p.m.

9. LATE ITEMS

9.1 Re Item 3 - Superintendent's Report - Enrolment Data 45

9.2 Re Item 4.3 Application for Joint Sponsorship of a Sports Team - Parkland 47

9.3 Re Item 4.4 Field Trip Application - MBSS - Vienna, Prague 49

9.4 Re Item 6.2 Workplace Bullying and Harassment 65

4



 
 

The Board of Education of  

School District No.5 (Southeast Kootenay) 

MINUTES - REGULAR PUBLIC MEETING 

September 10, 2013, 5:00 p.m. 

Board Office 

 
Present: Chairperson Lento 

Trustee Ayling 

Trustee Bellina 

Trustee Besanger 

Trustee Brown 

Trustee Helgesen 

Trustee Johns 

Trustee Whalen 

L. Hauptman, Superintendent of Schools 

R. Norum, Secretary Treasurer 

B. Reimer, Director of Instruction/Human Resources 

D. Casault, Director of Instruction/Student Learning 

D. McPhee, Director of Instruction/Aboriginal Education/Safety Officer 

J. Skerik, Executive Assistant (Recorder) 

 

Regrets: Trustee Damström   

 

1. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 

 1.1 Call to Order 

(a)   Public Meeting of September 10, 2013 

 

Chairperson Lento called the September 10, 2013 public meeting of the Board of 
Education to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Chairperson Lento welcomed CFTA Co-chair Shelley Balfour and DPAC 
President Debbie Therrien and requested that all in attendance take time to reflect 
on ways to show kindness to anyone experiencing difficult times, including 
Trustee Damstrom. 

Chairperson Lento welcomed Superintendent Hauptman and noted that school 
start-up had been very positive. 

 

 1.2 Consideration and Approval of Agenda 

(a)   Acceptance of Agenda 

 

Additions: 

Item 4.7 - New Business - Technology Plan  

 

 

5



MOTION R - 13 - 108 

M/S that the agenda for the Public Meeting of the Board of Education 
of September 10, 2013 be approved as amended. 

 

CARRIED 

 

 1.3 Approval of Minutes 

(a)   Public Meeting of June 11, 2013 

Errors/Omissions:  Nil 

Mr. Verbeurgt noted that the letter referenced in Motion R-13-92 would be sent 
soon. 

 

MOTION R - 13 - 109  

M/S that the minutes of the regular public meeting of the Board of Education 
of June 11, 2013 be approved as circulated. 

 

CARRIED 

 

 1.4 Receipt of Records of Closed Meetings 

(a)   In-camera Meeting of June 11, 2013 

 

MOTION R - 13 - 110  

M/S to accept the closed records of the in-camera meeting of the Board of 
Education of June 11, 2013 

 

CARRIED 

 

 1.5 Business Arising from Previous Minutes 

(a)   Needs Budget 

Trustee Johns requested that copies of the letter to Minister Fassbender be sent 
to CFTA, CUPE and exempt staff and that Minister Fassbender be invited to tour 
SD5 in the near future. 

 

(b)   AFG Projects Update 

Discussion included re-setting the HVAC system at Sparwood Secondary and 
inclusion of Mr. McPhee's report on parking for consideration when determining 
AFG projects for next year. 

 

 1.6 Receiving of Delegations/Presentations 

(a)   Annette Rogers - Sound Connections 

 

Chairperson Lento welcomed Speech Pathologist Annette Rogers.  

Ms. Rogers shared information regarding her Sound Connections program and 
provided data on Kindergarten phonological awareness, a predictor of literacy 
success.  She acknowledged her team that includes Speech Language 
Pathologists, Student Services Teachers, classroom Teachers, Education 
Assistants, Speech Language Assistants and parents and thanked the Board for 
the amount of speech language services intervention.  Ms. Rogers shared writing 
samples and videos of a child taken prior to entering school and after a year of 
intensive support in Kindergarten. 

 

6



Trustees thanked Annette for sharing her astounding results. 

 

2. COMMITTEE REPORTS / TRUSTEE REPRESENTATIVE REPORTS 

2.1.   Communications/Media Committee 

Trustee Ayling distributed and reviewed her Trustee Report.  

The media release scheduled for distribution will be re-worked following the trustee 
session on September 18th.  

 

MOTION R – 13 - 111 

M/S to accept the report of the Communications/Media Committee. 

 

CARRIED 

 

2.2.   Trustee Reports 

Trustee Helgesen - the first PAC meeting at Rocky Mountain Elementary School had a 
great turnout. 

Trustee Ayling – Trustee report was included with her Communications Committee 
Report. 

Trustee Johns - Legacy of Learning update - can now be accessed on Facebook, have 
completed materials from TM Roberts Elementary, received boxes from Highlands 
Elementary, lack of materials from Parkland, sustainable funding.  Mt. Baker Secondary - 
PIR report completed for Key City Theatre.  Highlands Elementary school fundraiser for 
wheelchair friendly playground equipment. 

Trustee Whalen - World Suicide Prevention Day, discussion about suicide prevention and 
postvention at Safe Communities Cranbrook meeting 

 

3. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT TO THE BOARD 

3.1.   Superintendent's Report 

Superintendent Hauptman's report of September 10, 2013 included: 

 Superintendent's Activities 

 Space Camp Attendee 

 Opportunity for Columbia Basin Trust's "Know Your Watershed" Presentation 

 Finance/Operations Updates 

 Update from the Director of Instruction/Student Learning 

 Update from Director of Instruction/Safety  
o Aboriginal Education 
o Technology 

 Update from Director of Instruction/Human Resources 

 Important Dates for Trustees 
 

Superintendent Hauptman thanked everyone for making her feel so welcome and 
reviewed portions of her written report.  She noted that she is happy to attend community 
partners' functions.  Ms. Hauptman noted that Cookie, the service dog at FJ Mitchell 
Elementary School, has been very well received. 

 

MOTION R – 13 - 112 

M/S that the Superintendent's Report to the Board of Education be accepted as 
presented. 

 

CARRIED 

 

7



4. NEW BUSINESS 

4.1.   Business Arising from Delegations 

Nil 

 

4.2.   Five Year Capital Plan Bylaw 

 

MOTION R – 13 - 113 

M/S that the Board of Education of School District No. 5 approve the Five Year 
Capital Plan and submit it to the Minister of Education. 

 

CARRIED  

 

4.3.   Amended Capital Project Bylaw No. 126614 - AFG 

 

MOTION R – 13 – 114 Capital Project Bylaw No. 126614 - AFG 

M/S to allow three readings of the amended Capital Project Bylaw No. 126614 - AFG. 

 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION R – 13 – 115 Capital Project Bylaw No. 126614 - AFG 

M/S Read a first time September 10, 2013. 

 

CARRIED 

 

MOTION R – 13 – 116 Capital Project Bylaw No. 126614 - AFG 

M/S Read a second time September 10, 2013. 

 

CARRIED 

 

MOTION R – 13 – 117 Capital Project Bylaw No. 126614 - AFG 

M/S Read a third time, finally passed and adopted September 10, 2013. 

 

CARRIED 

 

4.4.   BCSTA / BCPSEA Issues 

Trustee Bellina provided a verbal report - the Board of Directors of BCPSEA was 
eliminated on July 31 and BCSTA is working on a new provincial bargaining 
structure.  Feedback will be collected from Kootenay Boundary Branch school districts at 
their annual general meeting and the SD5 Board will meet September 18th to discuss the 
proposed changes.  

 

4.5.   Capital Project Bylaw - Project No. 126556 - Carbon Neutral Capital Program 

Mr. Norum noted that SD5 did not have any projects approved this year. 

Chairperson Lento noted that Joe Tank, Manager of Operations, has been asked to seek 
input regarding projects for this seed money. 

 

 

 

 

8



MOTION R – 13 – 118 Capital Project Bylaw - Project No. 126556 - Carbon Neutral 
Capital Program 

M/S to allow three readings of Capital Project Bylaw - Project No. 126556 - Carbon 
Neutral Capital Program. 

 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION R – 13 – 119 Capital Project Bylaw - Project No. 126556 - Carbon Neutral 
Capital Program 

M/S Read a first time September 10, 2013. 

 

CARRIED 

 

MOTION R – 13 – 120 Capital Project Bylaw - Project No. 126556 - Carbon Neutral 
Capital Program 

M/S Read a second time September 10, 2013. 

 

CARRIED 

 

MOTION R – 13 – 121 Capital Project Bylaw - Project No. 126556 - Carbon Neutral 
Capital Program 

M/S Read a third time, finally passed and adopted September 10, 2013. 

 

CARRIED 

4.6.   2013/2014 Student Achievement Contract 

Superintendent Hauptman noted that school districts must submit a Student Achievement 
Contract annually.  Diane Casault, Director of Instruction/Student Learning reviewed the 
goals of the 2013-2014 contract, the strategies that will be used to achieve the goals, and 
some of the professional development opportunities for staff in the 2013-2014 school 
year. 

Discussion included: 

 Sound Connections program 

 Transitions 

 Support for professional learning communities 

 Juno training 

 Educational partnership agreement with SD6, SD8 and the College of the Rockies, 
transitions coordinator 

 EARS (Educational Analytic Reporting System) 

 Trustee involvement in structures and strategies 

 Review of alternate programs 
 
MOTION R – 13 – 122 
 
M/S that the Board of Education approve the 2013/2014 Student Achievement 
Contract. 
 

CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

9



4.7.   Technology Plan 

 

MOTION R – 13 - 123 

M/S that the District Technology Plan be posted on the main page of the District 
website. 

 

CARRIED 

 

5. TRUSTEE BOUQUETS 

Trustee Bellina - to bargaining team Keith Regular, Jason Tichauer, Diane Casault, Rob 
Norum, Brent Reimer and Bendina Miller; to the BCTF bargaining team, especially Shelley 
Balfour and Kate Noakes; to Diane Casault for Roots of Empathy information; to 
Executive Assistants for travel arrangements; to Lynn Hauptman for attending the school 
meetings with the Lieutenant-Governor; welcome back to all staff; to Women of Steel 
Local 9346 for donating backpacks filled with school supplies; to Colleen Holland for 
sending newspaper clippings; to trustees for supporting her re-election as president of the 
KBB; to Trustee Whalen for her September report 

 

Trustee Johns - to Highlands PAC for organizing a gala fundraising event 

 

6. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/CORRESPONDENCE 

Trustee Whalen shared information regarding a session on school anxiety.  Trustee 
Brown noted that the Child Development Centre has a room available to connect with 
doctors at the Alberta and BC Children's Hospitals 

 

7. QUESTION PERIOD 

Nil 

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION R – 13 - 124 

M/S that the September 10, 2013 public meeting of the Board of Education adjourn 
at 6:50 p.m. 

 

  

 

10



11



 

 

 
The Board of Education of 

School District No.5 (Southeast Kootenay) 

MINUTES – Advocacy/Education Committee Meeting 

 

September 23, 2013, 9:00 a.m. 

Board Office 

 

Committee 

Members in 

Attendance: 

Co-Chair Trustee Bellina 

Co-Chair Trustee Whalen 

Trustee Brown 

Trustee Johns 

 

Board/District Staff 

in Attendance: 

Trustee Ayling 

Trustee Lento 

Trustee Besanger 

Lynn Hauptman, Superintendent 

Doug McPhee, Director of Instruction 

Gail Rousseau, Executive Assistant (Recorder) 

D. Casault, Director of Instruction/Student Learning 

 

 

1. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 

 

1.1. Call to Order 

 

The Advocacy/Education Committee Meeting of September 23, 2013 was 

called to order at 9:05 a.m. by Co-Chair Bellina. 

 

1.2. Approval of Agenda 

 

Addition – Item 4.6 - Update from UBCM 

 

ADV-2013-011 

  

M/S that the agenda of the Advocacy/Education Committee meeting of 

September 23, 2013 be approved as amended. 

12



 

 

 

 

1.3. Approval of Minutes 

 

ADV-2013-12 

 

M/S that the minutes of the Advocacy/Education Committee meeting 

of May 27, 2013 be approved as circulated. 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1. Ron Popoff - Coaching, Recruitment and Training for School Teams 

 

Ron Popoff, volunteer volleyball coach, brought his concerns regarding 

coaching, recruitment and training for school sports teams to the 

Committee's attention.  Highlights were: 

 

 not fair to the players and parents to have non-vetted volunteers in 

the role as a school team coach 

 felt like more of a duty; was not positive or rewarding 

 left a negative message amongst students that this sport was not 

important to the school as volunteers were coaches with no support 

from faculty 

 during practices, held twice a week, there were no school 

personnel present to see how he was interacting with the students 

 travelling for tournaments he was also the chaperone and sole 

person responsible for all students; bus driver would also supervise 

which is not his role 

 to provide a criminal record check was the only thing that was 

asked of him to become a volunteer coach 

 occasionally had help from a COTR student for grade 9 volleyball 

 huge disservice to players 

 all these programs including sport, band, drama etc. provides a 

 positive school reputation and builds sense of team, 

 creates positive self-esteem, promotes being team players, gives 

 players a sense of school and team pride, positive sense of social 

 belonging in community 

   

 Recommendations were provided (See attached handout). 

13



 

 

 

 

 A discussion took place: 

 

 concerns being shared with administration of schools 

 suggestion to hold coaching clinic prior to school start-up 

 

This item is referred to District Management for a report at the 

October Advocacy/Education Committee Meeting. 

 

3. ITEMS FORWARDED FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 

 

3.1. Kindergarten Online Registration - Update 

 

An update on the online registration form/process was given by Doug 

McPhee.  Discussion included: 

 

 length of form 

 link to pdf map to show boundaries in Cranbrook 

 training for secretaries/administration 

 cost and amount of time expended so far 

 necessity for parents to physically register at schools 

  

Recommendation A – that the Board approve the Student Online 

Registration Form. 

 

3.2. Education Hours by Province - Update 

 

A brief updated was given.  Information was pulled together by Mr. 

McPhee and was made available to Trustees.  This item was received and 

filed.  

 

3.3. Letter from SD43 

 

A discussion was held in reference to all letters received from the BCSTA 

on behalf of school districts.  All BCSTA letters will be referred to Trustee 

Lento for further action. 

 

14



 

 

In future meetings, all letters will be grouped together as a block to be 

dealt with in a more efficient manner. 

 

3.4. Letter from SD8 - Support of Wage Increases 

 

Received and filed. 

 

3.5. Letter from SD20 - Childcare in Schools 

 

This item will be referred to the October Advocacy/Education Committee 

agenda. 

  

Gail forwarded Letter 165825 from Minister McRae dated February 22, 

2013 to Trustees. 

 

4. CORRESPONDENCE AND/OR NEW ITEMS 

 

4.1. DSAC Report 

 

The DSAC students held a teleconference on September 17th regarding 

the upcoming Blue Lake trip.  The Superintendent attended Blue Lake for 

one day and reported that the students were an incredible bunch of young 

people doing amazing things and that the district was in good hands for 

student leaders for the future. Thanks to David Martin, Mike Kelly, Gail 

Rousseau, the counselors and Principals who worked with students to 

prepare them for the conference.  Also thanks to the facilitators who 

provided a jam-packed agenda and provided the students with the tools to 

develop their community plans.  

 

4.2. DPAC Report 

 

Trustee Johns attended the DPAC meeting and provided a summary from 

the Board meeting the night before.  He also discussed, briefly, the 

Legacies of Learning Project. 

 

4.3. SD5 Apprenticeships 

 

A discussion took place on how we can offer apprenticeships to SD5 

students.  Discussion included: 

 

15



 

 

 there is a model that exists in our region (Invermere) 

 when students graduate from the ACE-It program they have 

completed their Level 1 apprenticeship 

 need to respect unionized structure 

 need to look at offering electrical apprenticeships in SD5  

  

This item was referred to District Management to provide a report 

for the October Advocacy/Education Committee meeting. 

 

4.4. Student Use of Personal Electronic Devices 

 

An email was sent to Trustees from a parent which questioned the effects 

of non-ionizing electromagnetic radiation which is the potentially harmful 

radiation emitted by cellphones. A discussion took place: 

 

 how much testing is being done in SD5? 

 SD5 is operating at a SC6 level of standard which is considered 

safe by the Canada Safety Council 

 suggestion to educate students at the beginning of the school year 

regarding use of personal devices; educational piece should 

include making students aware that it is not healthy to be on 

personal devices 24/7 

 our teachers do a good job talking about balance to students  

 

4.5. Policy 3.1 - Student Registration, Enrolment and Placement 

 

Diane Casault, Director of Student Learning, brought forward Policy 3.1 to 

ask the committee to consider either setting or changing the enrolment 

application date wording in the Policy.  The Policy, as it reads now, says 

"Prior to February 1st of each school year the Board will establish 

enrolment deadline dates for student enrolment". This could also be tied 

into a bigger conversation when a discussion occurs with regard to school 

boundaries, catchment areas, placement, etc.  

  

Recommendation B- that the Board establish enrolment deadline 

dates for student enrolment in Board Policy 3.1.  

 

This item is referred to the October Policy Committee meeting to have 

further discussion on catchment areas, school boundaries, enrolment etc.  

  

16



 

 

There was a suggestion that schools organize registration requests in 

number priorities.  This will be discussed at the next Policy Committee 

meeting.   

 

4.6. UBCM Update 

 

The Superintendent gave an update from the UBCM Conference.  There 

was a discussion on trades/skills opportunities in the province and a push 

for the Mt. Baker School replacement.  

 

5. BCSTA LETTERS 

 

5.1. – 5.11  All BCSTA letters were referred to Trustee Lento for further action. 

 

6. ADJOURNMENT 

 

The Advocacy/Education Committee meeting was adjourned at 10:28 a.m. 

 

7. LATE ITEMS 

 

 Recommendations from Ron Popoff on coaching school teams 

 

17



 

 

 
The Board of Education of 

School District No.5 (Southeast Kootenay) 

MINUTES - POLICY MEETING 

 

September 23, 2013, 10:00 a.m. 

Board Office 

 

Committee 

Members in 

Attendance: 

Co-Chair Trustee Brown 

Trustee Besanger 

 

 

 

 

Regrets: Trustee Damstrom 

Trustee Ayling 

 

 

Board/District 

Staff in 

Attendance: 

Trustee Bellina 

Trustee Johns 

Chairperson Lento 

Trustee Whalen 

L. Hauptman, Superintendent of Schools 

R. Norum, Secretary Treasurer 

B. Reimer, Director of Instruction/Human Resources 

D. Casault, Director of Instruction/Student Learning 

D. McPhee, Director of Instruction/Aboriginal 

Education/Safety Officer 

D. Verbeurgt, District Principal/Student Services 

J. Paetz, Executive Assistant (Recorder) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 

 

1.1. Call to Order 

 

The Policy Committee meeting of September 23, 2013 was called to order 

at 10:34 a.m. by Co-Chair Brown. 

 

 

 

18



 

 

1.2. Approval of the Agenda 

 

POL-2013-009 

‘’M/S that the agenda for the Policy Committee meeting of  

September 23, 2013 be approved as circulated." 

 

CARRIED 

 

1.3. Approval of the Minutes 

 

POL-2013-010 

‘’M/S that the minutes of the Policy Committee meeting of  

May 27, 2013 were approved as circulated.’’ 

 

CARRIED 

 

2. POLICIES PASSED BY THE BOARD SINCE LAST MEETING 

 

 Nil 

 

3. BUSINESS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 

 

3.1. Revised Policy 2.13 Alcohol - Buildings, Grounds, Functions 

 

Discussion included: 

 a history of the policy and previous drafts 

 legal aspects of the policy 

 the District receives funding from a variety of sources (i.e. gaming, 

Liquor Store sales for dry grad) 

 DPAC/PAC is a separate entity and has their own constitution.  District 

policies come in to effect whenever they use District facilities. 

 The Board has the right to set policy on what activities are 

acceptable.  The Board can also have policy which addresses what 

types of funding they will accept (i.e. not accepting money from a 

tobacco company).  

 

RECOMMENDATION A 

‘’M/S that the revised Policy 2.13 Alcohol - Buildings, Grounds, 

Functions be sent the Board of Education for approval." 

 

19



 

 

3.2. Policy 1.4 Terms of Reference - Policy Committee (TS Feedback) 

 

Feedback from partner groups was reviewed. 

  

Add wording to indicate the Committee will hold meetings on an as 

required basis. 

 

RECOMMENDATION B 

‘’M/S that the revised Policy 1.4 Terms of Reference - Policy 

Committee, with the noted amendment, be sent to the Board of 

Education for approval.’’ 

CARRIED 

 

3.3. Policy 1.6 Terms of Reference - Advocacy/Education Committee (TS 

Feedback) 

 

Feedback from partner groups was reviewed. 

 

RECOMMENDATION C 

‘’M/S that the revised Policy 1.6 Terms of Reference - 

Advocacy/Education Committee be sent to the Board of Education 

for approval.’’ 

 

CARRIED 

 

3.4. Draft Policy Terms of Reference - SPED/Student Services Committee 

(TS Feedback) 

 

Feedback from partner groups was reviewed. 

  

Discussion included: 

 inviting a Principal/Vice Principal and/or other staff to the meetings  

 take out ‘Special Education’ from the title (moving away from that term 

provincially) 

 change inclusion to inclusion/accessibility 

 add wording to indicate the Committee will meet on an as required 

basis 

 

 

 

20



 

 

RECOMMENDATION D 

‘’M/S that the revised Draft Policy Terms of Reference - Special 

Education/Student Services Committee, with the noted 

amendments, be sent to the Board of Education for approval.’’ 

 

CARRIED 

 

3.5. Revised Policy 1.2 Procedural By-law / Draft Policy School Board 

Operations 

 

  This item has been deferred to the October meeting. 

 

4. CORRESPONDENCE AND/OR NEW ITEMS 

 

4.1. Policy 1.12 School Board Policy Development 

 

Discussion included: 

 revisions reflect the change from Education/Policy Committee to Policy 

Committee 

 requests made for policy development should be directed to the 

Chairperson of the Board 

 change wording, 'The draft is then circulated to the Chair(s) of all 

partner groups’ 

 

The revised policy will be sent to partner groups for feedback and 

brought back to the November meeting. 

 

5. INFORMATION ITEMS 

 

 Nil 

 

6. ADJOURNMENT 

 

The meeting adjourned at 11:32 a.m. 

 

21



 

Policy 2.13 Alcohol – Buildings, Grounds and Functions                  Page 1 of 1  

Approved February 3, 2004 

 

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT 5 (SOUTHEAST KOOTENAY) 

  

 

POLICY                              ALCOHOL – BUILDINGS, GROUNDS 

            AND FUNCTIONS  

SECTION 2.13       

  

 

The Board supports the philosophy that schools are primarily for the use of children and that this use is 

incompatible with the consumption of alcohol on school district property.  Therefore, there will be no 

consumption of alcoholic beverages upon properties owned or operated by the Board. 

 

Board leased/rented properties are exempt from this policy except when hosting educational activities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

22



 

Policy 1.4 Terms of Reference - Policy Committee                          Page 1 of 1 

Revised October 14,/2003 

Revised October 9, 2007 
 

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT 5 (SOUTHEAST KOOTENAY)

        

POLICY                   TERMS OF REFERENCE 

              POLICY COMMITTEE                        

SECTION 1.4       

 

 

The Committee shall consist of four (4) Trustees, who will be appointed by the Chairperson of the 

Board. 

 

In addition, the Committee shall include the following non-voting advisory members: 

 

 Superintendent of Schools 

 District staff as assigned by the Superintendent of Schools 

 

The Committee meetings will be open to the public and will be held on an ‘as required’ basis.   

 

The Committee shall report to the Board at its public meetings. 

 

1. The Committee’s mandate concerning policy is to obtain advice on revision of current policy and 

the generation of new policy and then make recommendations to the Board. 

 

2. Policy preparation, presentation and implementation will be as per the Board’s Policy 

Development policy. 

 

3. The Committee, at the request of the Board, will fulfill a liaison function with community groups. 

  

4. The Committee will perform other related functions as per the direction of the Board.  

 

23



 

Policy 1.6 Terms of Reference – Advocacy/Education Committee                Page 1 of 1 
Approved September 2003 

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT 5 (SOUTHEAST KOOTENAY) 

 

POLICY                  TERMS OF REFERENCE 

            ADVOCACY/EDUCATION COMMITTEE 

SECTION 1.6 

 

 

The Committee shall consist of four (4) Trustees, who will be appointed by the Chairperson of the 

Board. 

 

In addition, the Committee shall include the following non-voting advisory members: 

 

 Superintendent of Schools 

 District staff as assigned by the Superintendent of Schools 

 

The Committee meetings will be open to the public and will be held on an ‘as required’ basis.   

 

The Committee shall report to the Board at its public meetings. 

 

Advocacy 

 

1. The Committee’s mandate is to advocate on behalf of District student needs and achievement and 

for the requisite funding requirements. 

 

Education 

 

1. The Committee shall be a vehicle for discussion of educational matters and shall make 

recommendations to the Board on such educational matters referred to them.  

 

2. The Committee shall be responsible for educational topics to be presented at the monthly public 

meeting of the Board.  

 

3. Educational matters shall be those related to: 

 

 Curriculum 

 Program and student assessment and evaluation 

 School programs and services 

 Non Instructional days 

 Post-Secondary Institutes 

 Any other items as are deemed educational by the Committee. 

24



 

Policy 1.16 Terms of Reference – Student Services Committee                     Page 1 of 1 

 

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT 5 (SOUTHEAST KOOTENAY) 

 

POLICY                                       TERMS OF REFERENCE 

                STUDENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 

SECTION 1.161 

 

The Committee shall consist of four (4) Trustees, who will be appointed by the Chairperson of the 

Board. 

 

In addition, the Committee shall include the following non-voting advisory members: 

 

 The Superintendent of Schools and/or designate 

 District staff as assigned by the Superintendent of Schools 

 

The Committee meetings will be open to the public and will be held on an ‘as required’ basis.   

 

The Committee shall be a vehicle for discussion of Student Services and shall report to the Board at its 

public meetings. 

 

Student Services matters shall be those relating to: 

 

1. Inclusion/accessibility 

 

2. Early intervention 

 

3. Service without designation 

 

4. Assessment and identification of students 

 

5. Student Services funding 

 

6. Service delivery models: 

a. Blended special education and learning assistance 

b. Alternate programs 

c. School Based Team  

d. Caseload and workload of staff 

 

7. Itinerant services 

 

8. Support staff development  

 

9. Transitioning planning – into and between schools, and out to community 

 

10. Cross agency cooperation 

 

11. Any other such items as are deemed Student Services by the Committee or the Board.  

25



 

 

 
The Board of Education of 

School District No.5 (Southeast Kootenay) 

MINUTES - FINANCE/OPERATIONS/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE (PUBLIC) 

September 23, 2013, 1:00 p.m. 

Board Office 

 

Committee 

Members in 

Attendance: 

Co-Chair Trustee Johns 

Trustee Bellina 

Trustee Whalen 

 

 

 

 

Regrets: Trustee Helgesen 

 

 

Board/District Staff 

in Attendance: 

Trustee Besanger 

Trustee Brown 

Trustee Lento 

R. Norum, Secretary Treasurer 

L. Hauptman, Superintendent of Schools 

B. Reimer, Director of Instruction/Human Resources 

D. Casault, Director of Instruction/Student Learning 

D. McPhee, Director of Instruction/Aboriginal Education/Safety 

Officer 

D. Verbeurgt, District Principal/Student Services 

J. Tank, Manager of Operations 

J. Skerik, Executive Assistant (Recorder) 

 

 

1. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 

1.1. Call to Order 

The public Finance/Operations/Personnel Committee meeting of September 23, 

2013 was called to order at 1:04 p.m. by Co-chair Trustee Johns. 

 

1.2. Approval of the Agenda 

MOTION FOP-P 2013-11 

M/S that the agenda of the public Finance/Operations/Personnel Commmittee 

meeting of September 23, 2013 be approved as circulated. 

CARRIED 

1.3. Approval of the Minutes 

MOTION FOP-P 2013-12 

M/S that the minutes of the May 27, 2013 public meeting of the 

Finance/Operations/Personnel Committee be approved as circulated. 

CARRIED 

26



 

 

 

2. BUSINESS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES 

2.1. Reduction of Carbon Footprint / Carbon Neutral Capital Program - Rob 

Norum, Joe Tank 

 Mr. Tank reviewed his Energy Plan of September 20, 2013.  Discussion 

included: 

 ·        Estimated savings 

 ·        Partnerships 

 ·        Ground temperatures in the Elk Valley/thermal heating and cooling 

 

2.2. WiFi Report - Doug McPhee 

Mr. McPhee advised trustees that part of his report had been shared in Advocacy 

Committee meeting.   

  

He noted that in tests run in a classroom determined exposure did not exceed 

the standards identified in Health Canada's Safety Code 6 “Limits of Human 

Exposure to Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Energy in the Frequency Range 

from 3 kHz to 300 GHz”. 

 

3. DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 

 Nil 

 

4. NEW BUSINESS 

4.1. Technology Update - Doug McPhee 

Mr. McPhee reviewed his report regarding Technology:  SIS UPdate - Student 

Information System. 

  

4.2. Technology Update - Doug McPhee 

Mr. McPhee reviewed his report regarding Laurie Middle School 

Inventory.  Discussion included: 

·        Focus on concept school, Laurie Middle School    

 ·       Implementation schedule for all schools, delays 

 ·       Ratio of students to computers/student access to computers 

 ·       Reallocation of existing usable computers  

 ·       Consistent operating system with consistent software support – Microsoft 

Office 365 for students, cloud storage, collaboration tools 

 ·        Susceptibility to viruses, use of anti-viral software 

 ·        Efficiencies created by a portal system 

 ·        District Steering Committee 

 ·        BYOD  

 ·        Replacement cycle v. leasing 

·        Technology Plan on website 

 

 

27



 

 

4.3. Courtesy Rider Update - Rob Norum 

Mr. Norum provided a verbal update - family in South Country has been invoiced, 

one rider from St. Mary's band, one part time rider from Wycliffe area. 

 

5. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 

5.1. Safety Report - Doug McPhee 

Mr. McPhee provided a verbal report including: 

 ·        September Safety Committee meetings – one WCB claim during the 

summer, submission of school inspection reports, traffic safety; next meetings 

October 22 and 23 

 ·        Hazardous waste removal in June 

 ·        Completion of crisis response manual and emergency procedures manual 

 ·        ERASE training at end of October 

 ·        Restorative justice training this week 

 ·        Evacuation plans for schools, particularly in the event of a rail accident 

(Pinewood) 

 ·        Presentation on threat assessment 

 ·        Traffic concerns / speeding in school zones / involvement of PAC groups 

and Cranbrook in Motion Committee 

 ·        Shared training with ambulance, fire, police, community, MCFD, partners 

that work with students, parents 

 ·        Development of District of Sparwood community plan, inclusion of SD5 in 

discussions 

 

5.2. Grounds Management Update - Joe Tank 

Mr. Tank reviewed his report of September 18, 2013.  

Mr. Tank and the Grounds Crew will be thanked for their work this summer. 

 

6. QUESTION PERIOD 

 Speed zone signs on Cobham Avenue near Pinewood 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

The public Finance/Operations/Personnel Committee meeting adjourned at 2:30 p.m. 

 

 

28



 

 

 
The Board of Education of 

School District No.5 (Southeast Kootenay) 

MINUTES - SPECIAL EDUCATION STUDENT SERVICES MEETING 

 

September 23, 2013, 11:00 a.m. 

Board Office 

 

Committee 

Members in 

Attendance: 

Co-Chair Trustee Johns 

Co-Chair Trustee Besanger 

Trustee Whalen 

 

Regrets: Trustee Ayling 

 

Board/District Staff 

in Attendance: 

Trustee Bellina 

Trustee Brown 

Chairperson Lento 

L. Hauptman, Superintendent of Schools 

D. Verbeurgt, District Principal/Student Services 

J. Paetz, Executive Assistant (Recorder) 

 

1. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 

 

1.1. Call to Order 

 

The Special Education Student Services meeting of September 23, 

2013 was called to order at 11:34 a.m. by Co-Chair Johns. 

 

1.2. Approval of the Agenda 

 

SPED-2013-004 

M/S that the agenda for the Special Education Student Services 

Meeting of September 23, 2013 be approved as circulated. 

 

CARRIED 

 

 

29



 

 

1.3. Approval of the Minutes 

 

SPED-2013-005 

M/S that the minutes of the Special Education Student Services 

meeting of September 23, 2013 be approved as circulated. 

 

CARRIED 

 

2. BUSINESS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES 

 

2.1. Letters Regarding Collaborative Services Planning - Update 

 

Discussion included: 

  MCFD 

 Mr. Verbeurgt continues to build relations with MCFD through 

contacts, emails and planning groups 

 Currently working on a Mental Health Forum (invitation only) 

on November 25th & 26th.   He is working with the group to create a 

new network which will follow through on the promotion and 

prevention of mental health.  There are a wide range of contributors 

from cross-sector agencies. 

 Protocols still need to be ironed out.  More cooperation is being 

demanded from all agencies. 

 Phone discussions continue with MCFD and CYMH about services. 

 Child Protection work continues. 

 A new network if being formed around services to adults with 

disabilities (STADD) – October 1st workshop. 

 Childhood Development Centre - Trustee Brown advised that there are 

still several positions open (striving to create a complete team of 

childhood specialists at the Centre). 

 Mr. Verbeurgt will still send a letter to MCFD requesting collaboration. 

 It would be helpful for the Childhood Development Centre to send 

the district a letter identifying what their needs are. Trustee Whalen will 

follow-up on this. 

  

Early Childhood 

 Mr. Verbeurgt has asked to be invited to their meetings. 

 Met in June regarding students with ASD (Autism Spectrum Disorder) 

30



 

 

 Met with Elk Valley Early Childhood services (OT, PT, SLP, 

Childcare).  Good conversation - asked by OT to another meeting in 

October. 

 Met with IHA regarding therapy providers.  Trying to rewrite the 

contract with OT/PT (SD6 also involved). Concerns about where 

school-age children and pre-school children are being serviced (no 

data recorded or provided at this time). 

 Formal / informal transition meetings - met with daycares, childcares to 

determine what services kids receive in preschool and then try to 

match those in school.  

 Need for on-going conversation on transitions (children in transitions 

with ASD).  Needs to be a role for parents in those discussions. 

 EKCH Coalition meeting in November (Mr. Verbeurgt will attend). 

 

 

2.2. SPED/Student Services Committee Terms of Reference 

 

This item was dealt with in the Policy Committee meeting. 

 

2.3. Policy 3.10 Student Services Programs - Statement of Philosophy 

 

Discussion included: 

 Policy was written in 2001.  Does this reflect our current values and 

beliefs about Student Services? 

 Some programs are not mixing well due to different 

philosophies.  Some parental concern over different opinions about 

what services/programs work together and what don't. 

 Parents have the right to choose programs outside of school. 

 It's the ability of what the school can provide.  We can't give choices in 

everything.  Funding dictates how much we can do. 

 Mr. Verbeurgt recommends moving to learner support service (belief 

that children have a right to a full education). 

 Language in policy is very dated.  Our philosophy statements should 

come from our beliefs.  

 Mr. Verbeurgt will redraft the policy and bring back to the October 

meeting. 

 

 

 

 

31



 

 

3. CORRESPONDENCE AND/OR NEW ITEMS 

 

3.1. BC-CASE Summer Meeting - Update 

 

Mr. Verbeurgt provided a summary from the BC CASE meeting in August. 

Discussion included: 

 K-9 reveal for curriculum review - still in process.  Large amount of 

teachers involved with curriculum specialists.  Should be an update 

out sometime in the fall.   

 Request to management to include full terms for acronyms in future 

meetings. 

 DPAC commented that Early Learning seems to be the dominate 

focus in the news and media.  Are things being done for our older 

students? 

 Research clearly shows early intervention optimizes learning and is 

most effect in the early years.   

 Still a need to rebuild around Gr.8 and those important transition times 

through the high school years. 

 UBC now has a MDI (Middle Development Index) in addition to the 

EDI (Early Development Index). 

 Need to let others know that our resources are not just at the K-3 

level.  

 Mr. Verbeurgt will create a one page document for the new website 

that lists resources currently being utilized in the later grades. 

 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

 

The Special Education Student Services meeting was adjourned at 12:35 p.m. 

 

32



 

 

 
Board of Education 

School District No. 5 (Southeast Kootenay) 
Trustee Reports – October 2013 

 
 

Trustee Bellina 
September 10

th
 Board Meeting CBO 

September 11
th

 FJM Assembly 
September 12

th
 BCPSEA Bargaining call - went on with Vancouver.  

September 16
th

 6:00 - FJM PAC meeting 
                         7:00 -SSS PAC Meeting 
September 17

th
 12:00 DSAC Conference call 

September 18
th

 Board Meeting 
September 19

th
 10:00 - ECD Meeting 

                          12:00 - Final offer CUPE - conference call 
September 20-22nd - KBB AGM 
September 23

rd
 Committee Meetings 

 
Trustee Brown 
September 3 Safe Communities Cranbrook meeting 
September 10 School Board Meeting, Cranbrook 
September 11 Pinewood School PAC meeting 
September 12 TM Roberts School PAC meeting 
September 16 School Board Committees Meetings 
September 18 Board planning meeting 
September 18 French Committee meeting 
September 19-22  - BCSTA Zone meetings, Radium 
September 23 School Board Committee Meetings 
September 24 TM Roberts School Open House 
 
In September, I attended 43 hours of meeting time and another 15 hours of reading and preparation time for 
School District#5 committee and board work.   
 

 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69


	Agenda
	1.3 Approval of the Minutes
	1.4 Receipt of Records of Closed Meetings
	2.1 Advocacy/Education Committee
	2.2 Policy Committee
	2.2 Policy Committee
	2.2 Policy Committee
	2.2 Policy Committee
	2.2 Policy Committee
	2.3 Finance/Operations/Personnel Committee
	2.4 Special Education Student Services Committee
	2.8 Trustee Reports
	3. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT TO THE BOARD
	4.3 Application for Joint Sponsorship of a Sports Team 
	9.1 Re Item 3 - Superintendent's Report - Enrolment Data
	9.2 Re Item 4.3 Application for Joint Sponsorship of a Sports Team - Parkland
	9.3 Re Item 4.4 Field Trip Application - MBSS - Vienna, Prague 
	9.4 Re Item 6.2 Workplace Bullying and Harassment

